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535 West Jefferson Street
Springfield, Illinois 62701-0001

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
535 West Jefferson Street

Springfield, Illinois 62701-0001

Re: First Permit Alteration Request for Project No. 22-022 (the “Project”)
Silver Cross Orland Park Medical Office Building

Dear Mr. Constantino:

Silver Cross Health System and Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers (collectively,
the “Permit Holders™), pursuant to 77 Ill. Admin. Code §§ 1130.750, hereby submit this
alteration request (the “Alteration Request™) for the above referenced Project. Specifically, the
Permit Holders seek to increase the total costs for the Project by seven percent (7%). This is the
Permit Holders first alteration request for this Project.

Background Facts

On August 29, 2022, the Chairwoman of the Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review
Board (the “Review Board”) approved the Permit Holders’ Certificate of Need Application
(“Application”) to lease approximately 42,000 rentable square feet in a medical office building
(the “Medical Office Building”) to be developed, constructed and owned by Remedy Medical
Properties, Inc. (the “Owner” or the “Landlord”) and located at the northeast corner of LaGrange
Road and 171* Street in Orland Park, Illinois, at a total Project cost of $25,543,836.
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As set forth in the CON Application, the Permit Holders and the Landlord entered into a
space lease on November 22, 2022 (the “Space Lease™). Simultaneously with the execution of
the Space Lease, the Permit Holders executed a ground lease with the Landlord, whereby the
Landlord agreed to lease the land upon which the Medical Office Building sits from the Permit
Holders.

As also set forth in the CON Application, the Medical Office Building will house: (1)
primary care and specialty care physicians who are currently employed by Premiere Suburban
Medical Group (“PSMG™), an Illinois professional limited liability company, which is currently
managed by an affiliate of the Permit Holders; and (2) non-hospital based ambulatory care (i.e.,
infusion services, diagnostic imaging, GI services, and a well-patient/blood draw laboratory).
The Permit Holders will ultimately sublet the space assigned to PSMG or charge the space back
to PSMG as the various PSMG doctors and offices are relocated to the Medical Office Building.

Based on the construction progress reports submitted to the Permit Holders by the
Landlord, the Project remains on track. The Project will also meet the approved rentable square
footage of 42,000.

That said, because the Permit Holders are only leasing the Medical Office Building from
the Landlord, the Permit Holders are not directly managing the construction project and are
somewhat of a third party to a large portion of the actual, final costs associated with the Project.
The Permit Holders also need the Landlord’s assistance in gathering up the construction costs.

Out of abundance of caution, the Permit Holders are submitting this Alteration Request to
account for possible cost overruns due to the significant inflation that has been present in the
economy for the past few years. The Permit Holders are requesting the full seven percent (7%)
permitted under 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1130.750(b)(5), which would increase the total Project
costs from $25,543,836 to $27,331,904 (i.e., an increase of $1,788,068).

This Alteration Request sets forth the sections of the CON Application that are impacted
by this Alteration Request. Importantly, this Alteration Request does not negatively impact any
section of the CON Application that previously contained a positive finding by the Review
Board. Indeed, this Alteration Request only impacts a single line item from the CON
Application (i.e., modernization contracts/tenant improvement allowances), which was more
than $12.7 million dollars below the Section 1120 norm/metric.

4875-8466-2441.3
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Section I, Attachment 7
Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Exhibit 1 (attached) shows the budgeted costs and sources of funds for the Project as
originally approved by the Review Board, the additional funds sought by the Permit Holders in
this Alteration Request, and the sources of funds for the amounts sought by this Alteration
Request.

The Permit Holders allocated the increased modernization contracts/tenant improvement
allowances across the clinical and non-clinical space in the same manner that they allocated the
modernization contracts/tenant improvement allowances in the CON Application. Thus, the total
increase of $1,788,068 in modernization contracts/tenant improvement allowances was allocated
as follows: $875,536 to clinical space and $911,532 to non-clinical space. The Permit Holders
will use cash to pay for the additional modernization contracts/tenant improvement allowances as
set forth in the Affidavit from Vincent Pryor, attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

Section VI
Attachment 34
Availability of Funds
Criterion 1120.120

The Permit Holders will use cash to pay for the additional modernization contracts/tenant
improvement allowances contemplated by this Alteration Request as set forth in the Affidavit
from Vincent Pryor, attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

Silver Cross Hospital’s most recent audited financial statements (September 30, 2023) are
attached at Exhibit 3 and show that the Permit Holders are holding more than enough cash and
cash equivalents to fund the additional modernization contracts/tenant improvement allowances
requested in this Alteration Request. The Space Lease and Ground Lease also remain in place
with the Landlord, as does the Permit Holders’ original commitment to fund the other portions of
the Project with cash and cash equivalents.

4875-8466-2441.3
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Section VII
Attachment 35
Financial Feasibility
Financial Viability
Criterion 1120.130

The Permit Holders will use cash to pay for the additional modernization contracts/tenant
improvement allowances contemplated by this Alteration Request. The Space Lease and Ground
Lease also remain in place with the Landlord, as does the Permit Holders’ original commitment
to fund the other portions of the Project with cash and cash equivalents.

Silver Cross Hospital currently has an “A-” rating from Fitch Ratings. See Exhibit 4.

Thus, the Permit Holders remain entitled to a financial viability waiver pursuant to
Criterion 1120.130(a)(1). Mr. Pryor’s Financial Viability Waiver Certification is attached at
Exhibit 5.

Section VIII
Attachment 37
Economic Feasibility
Criterion 1120.140

Criterion 1120.140(c), Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

1. The original construction cost (i.e., tenant buildout costs) per gross square foot for the
clinical portions of the Project was listed at $56.40 in the CON Application. There are no
contingency costs associated with this Project. The clinical portions of the Project encompass
20,589 building gross square feet. The original construction and contingency costs for the
clinical portions of the Project total $1,176,514. The square footage of the Project remains
unchanged by this Alteration Request.

4875-8466-2441.3
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ORIGINAL COST AND BULDING GROSS SQUARE FEET

(CLINICAL PORTIONS OF PROJECT)

Department A [ B C ) E I G H Total
{list below) Cost/Building Gross | Building Gross Sq. | Building  Gross | Const. $ Mod. Cost
Square Foot Ft. Sq. Ft. (Clinical $ (Clinical
(Clinical Portions Portions Only) Portions Only)
Only)
NEW MOD NEW CIRC MOD CIRC (AxC) B (G+H)
E)
Medical Office Building | $56.40 20,589 $1,176,514 - $1,176,514
(Clinical Portions)
Construction Total $56.40 20,589 $1,176,514 - $1,176,514
Contingencies $0.00 20,589 - $0.00 - $0.00
Construction & | $56.40 - 20,589 - - $1,176,514 - 51,176,514
Contingencies Toial
2. The revised construction cost (i.e., tenant buildout costs) per gross square foot for the

clinical portions of the Project will increase from $56.40 to $99.72 if this Alteration Request is
approved by the Review Board. The revised construction and contingency costs for the clinical
portions of the Project will increase from $1,176,514 to $2,053,051 if this Alteration Request is
approved by the Review Board. These numbers are far below the Section 1120 norm/metric.

REVISED COST AND BULDING GROSS SQUARE FEET

(CLINICAL PORTIONS OF PROJECT)

Depariment A [B C | D E | F G H Total
(list below) Cost/Building Gross | Building Gross Sq. | Building  Gross | Const. $ Mod Cost
Square Foot F1. $q. Ft. (Clinical by {Clinical
(Clinical Portions Portions Only) Portions Only)
Only)
NEW MOD | NEW CIRC MOD | CIRC {AxC) (B (G +H)
E}
Medical Office Building | $99.72 20,589 - $2,053,051 - $2,053,051
(Clinical Portions)
Construction Total $99.72 20,589 $2,053,051 $2,053,051
Contingencies $0.00 20,589 $0.00 - $0.00
Construction & | §99.72 - 20,589 - - $2,053,051 - $2,053,051
Contingencies Total

No other sections of the CON Application are impacted by this Alteration Request.

4875-8466-2441.3
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I am enclosing a check in the sum of $1,500 to cover the processing fee associated with
this Alteration Request. See 77 Ill. Admin, Code § 1130.750(j). To the extent the increase in
total costs increases the total fee for the Project, the Permit Holders will immediately remit funds
to pay for the increased fee.

If you have any questions about this Alteration Request, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

EtwarfSicer,

Edward J. Green

4875-8466-2441.3
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'J‘ SILVER CROSS 1900 Silver Cross Bhvd, - New Lenox, 11, 66451

{S15) 3001100 - waww.silvereross ones

February 26, 2024

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, lllinois 62761

Re:  Criterion 1120.120(a) Available Funds Certification
Alteration Request, Project No. 22-022

Silver Cross Orland Park Medical Office Building
Dear Mr. Constantino:

I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury as provided in § 1-109 of the Illinois Code of
Civil Procedure, 735 ILCS 5/1-109, and pursuant to 77 lll. Admin. Code § 1120.120(a), that the
Permit Holders have sufficient and readily accessible cash and cash equivalents to fund the
additional modemization contracts/tenant improvement allowances set forth in the Alteration
Request filed by the Permit Holders for the Silver Cross Orland Park Medical Office Building,
Project No. 22-022.

Sincerely,

%/

Vincent E. Pryor
Executive Vice President & CFO
Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN

to before me this ,Ilm’ day

of February, 2024.

L.

Notary PGblic

TAMMY L FORTUNSKI
Official Seal

Notary Public - State of lilinols
My Commission Expires Nov 17, 2024

4890-8268-4585.1
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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KPMG LLP
Aon Center
Suite 5500
200 E. Randolph Street
Chicago, IL 60601-6436

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Trustees
Silver Cross Health System and Affiliates:

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Silver Cross Health System and Affiliates ({the
Company}, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the
related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, changes in

net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the relaled notes to the consolidated financial
statements.,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to
be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consclidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available
to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a

KPMG LLP. a Delaware imited hisbiity partnerstup and & membes firm of
tha KPMG gicbal organi: of mdep: fmns aifiliated with
KPMG International Limdad, a private Enghsh company limited by guaranies
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substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reascnable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or evenfs, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Other Matfers

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The supplementary information included in schedules 1 through 5 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consclidated financiail statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

KPMe LLP

Chicago, lllincis
January 29, 2024



SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Corsolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(Amounts in thousands)

Assets 2023 2022
Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,119 30,060
Short-tarm investments 5,795 4,708
Assets whose use is limiled or restricted, required for current liabilities 3 4
Palient accounts receivable 62,872 60.069
Other receivables 49,666 40338
Inventory 9,587 10.326
Prepaid expanses and other 7,263 5,349
Total current assets 168,313 150,854
Aszels whose use is limited or restricted, excluding assets required for current liabililies
By board for capital improvements and other 276,824 270,317
By board for self-insurance 31,684 29,970
Under bond indenture agreements - held by trustee 71 211
Pledges recewable 374 294
Daonor-restricted investments 1,830 1.452
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 7.395 6,908
Total assets whose use is limited or restricled, exciuding assets required for
current liabilities 318,178 309.152
Land, buildings, and equipment, net 425,841 432 416
Other assets.
Land held for sale 23.035 23,035
Eslimated excess insurance recovery receivables 6,396 5911
Operating lease right of use assets 25,097 30,227
Other long-term assels 20,129 16,784
Total assels ] 086,989 068,379

Liabilities and Net Assels

Current liabilities:

Current instaliments of long-term debt $ 8,405 9095
Current portion of operating lease liability 5171 4 894
Accounts payable 64,047 46,649
Accrued salaries and wages 30,964 32,188
Accrued expenses 22,322 20,242
Estimated payables under third-party reimbursement programs 31,758 37,482
Total current liabilities 162,667 150,550
Estimated sell-insured professional and general liability ciaims 44,497 47 859
Long-term debt, excluding current installments 339,041 347,884
Long-term operating lease hability. net of current portion 21,528 26,631
Capital lease and other long-term liabilities. net of current portion 931 1,222
Total liabitties 568,664 573,943
Net assets:
Net assets without donor restrictions 397,936 374 431
Noncentrolling interests in consolidated joint ventures 10,798 11,351
Total net assets without donor restrictions 408,732 385,782
Net assets with donor restrictions 9,593 8,654
Total net assets 418,325 394,438
Total liabilities and net assets $ 986,989 968,379

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

(Amounts in thousands)

2023 2022
Revenue:
Net patient service revenue $ 523,089 486,943
Other revenue 55,021 35,299
Total revenue 578,110 522,242
Expenses:
Salaries and wages 202,397 184,672
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 46,153 42,945
General and administrative 168,025 154,884
Supplies 110,922 103,432
Depreciation and amortization 31,809 33,270
Interest 15,840 14,305
Total expenses 575,146 533,508
Income (loss) from operations 2,964 {11,266)
Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment return, net 18,710 (47,339)
Other, net 920 {177)
Total nonoperating gains (losses), net 19,630 (47,516)
Revenue and gains in excess (deficient) of expenses
and losses 22,594 (58,782)
Changes in net assets without donor restrictions:
Net assets released from restriction for land, building, and
equipment acquisitions financed by net assets with
donor restrictions 880 2,013
Contributed capital from (returned to) minority partners in consolidated
joint ventures {524) 2,024
Increase (decrease) in net assets withcut donor restrictions  § 22,950 (54,745)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,



SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

{(Amounts in thousands)

2023 2022
Net assets without donor restrictions:
Revenue and gains in excess (deficient) of expenses $ 22,594 (58,782)
Other changes in net assets without donor restriclion:
Net assets released from restriction for land, building, and
equipment acquisitions financed by net assets with
donor restrictions 880 2,013
Contributed capital from (returned to) minority partners in
consolidated joint ventures {524) 2,024
Increase (decrease} in net assets without donor restrictions 22,950 (54,745)
Net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions for specific purposes 1,471 1,539
Net realized and unrealized gains and iosses on net assets with
donor restrictions 486 (2,370)
Net assets released from restriction for operating purposes (138) {105)
Net assets released from restriction for land, building, and
equipment acquisitions (880) {2,013)
Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions 939 {2,949)
Change in net assets 23,889 (57,694)
Net assets at beginning of year 394,436 452,130
Net assets at end of year $ 418,325 394,436

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,



SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

(Amounts in thousands)

2023 2022

Cash flows from operaling activities:
Change in net assets $ 23,889 (57.694)
Adjustiments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 31,809 33,270
Amorlization of bond issue cosls, discounts, and premiums included
in interest expense {410) (411)
Contributed capital from (returned to) minority pariners in consolidated
joint ventures 524 (2.024)
Income from equity methed investments (3.775) (4.022)
Distributions received from equity method investments 875 4,758
Net (gain) loss on sale of land, building, and equipment (114) 106
Change in the carrying amount of right of use asset 5,130 {5,119)
Net long-term contributions (1,333) {1,434)
Net realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments (17,965) 51,694
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable {2,803) 6,302
Estimated excess insurance recovery receivables (485) {1,053}
Other asseis {10,948) {16,118)
Estimated payables under third-party reimbursement programs (5,724) (39,851}
Change in operating lease liablity (4.826) 6,107
Accounis payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities 15,092 (7.792)
Net cash provided by {used in} operating activities 28,936 (33,281)
Cash flows from invesling aclivities:
Acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment (25,234) (26,856}
Proceeds from sale of land, buildings, and equipment 114 157
Cash received from consolidation of previous equity investment — 12,299
Net change in assels whose use is limited or restricted 8,932 73,640
Net change in short-term invesiments {1,087) (45)
Net cash (used in} provided by investing activities (17,275) 59,195
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of capital leases (291} {(4,916)
Repayments of long-term debt {9,120} (8,695)
Contributed capital from (returned to) minerity partners in consclidated joint ventures (524) 2,024
Net long-term contributions 1,333 1,434
Net cash used in financing activities (8,602) {10,153}
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 3.059 15,761
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 30,060 14,289
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year s 33,119 30.060
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for inlerest $ 16,126 14,305
Noncash transaclions associated with the consolidated joint venture entity acquisitions:
Prepaid expenses and other $ — 22
Other receivables — 10,762
Accounts payable -— (441)
Accrued expenses — (18,894)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022
{In thousands)

{1) Organization and Purposes

Silver Cross Health System (the Health System) was incorporated during 1981 for charitable, educational,
and scientific purposes to support health and human services by providing management assistance and in
all other relevant ways. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Health System and the following affiliates, which it controls (collectively referred to as the Corporations):

Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers (the Hospital}, a not-for-profit acute care hospital of which
the Heaith System is the sole member; the Hospital facility is located in New Lenox, lllinois and has
348 licensed beds.

Silver Cross Foundation {the Foundation), a not-for-profit corporation of which the Health System is the
sole member, which is dedicated to the advancement of heaithcare in Will, Grundy, South Cook, and
DuPage counties in lllinois.

Health Service Systems, Inc. (HSSI), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Health System, which was
incorporated to provide administrative and management services; to its affiliates and other businesses.

Midwest Community Real Estate Corporation (MCREC), a not-for-profit corporation of which the Health
System is the sole member, which was incorporated to establish and maintain healthcare centers and
other facilities for the benefit of the Health System and its affiliates.

Prime Medical Imaging LLC (Prime Medical}, a for-profit joint venture providing radiclogical healthcare
services, the Health System owns 51% and controls the joint venture, resulting in consolidation with
noncontrolling interest. Outside capital of $1,225 was received in formation of the joint venture in 2019.
Ownership percentages remained consistent with the prior year.

Silver Cross MSO, LLC (MSQ), a for profit joint venture providing professional management services
for physician healthcare practices; the Health System owns 86.7% and controls the joint venture,
resulting in consolidation with noncontrolling interest. Outside capital of $8,000 was received in
formation of the joint venture in 2021. The Health System invested an additional $20,000 in 2022 and in
2023, thus increasing their ownership percentage from 60% to 80% in 2022, and 80% 10 86.7% on
September 30, 2023.

On February 19, 2019, the Hospital, along with innovista, LLC, became the founding members of
Essential Health Partners, LLC (EHP), whose purpose was to develop and operate a clinically and
financially integrated healthcare provider network. The Hospital had an initial 60% ownership at
inception of EHP. In 2020, an additional partner was added, reallocating the Hospital's ownership to
33.33%. In 2021, that new partner had to exit EHP due to a merger and parent company affiliations. In
late fiscal year 2021, the Hospital added an additional healthcare provider, reallocating the Hospital's
ownership percentage to 27.5%. In 2022, due to the exit of certain healthcare provider partners, the
Hospital had an ownership percentage of 80% of EHP, and determined it had a controlling financial
interest in EHP. Prior to 2022, the Hospital accounted for its investment in EHP using the equity
method of accounting, but now consolidates them based upon control.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies of the Corporations that conform to general practice within the healthcare
industry are as follows:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make eslimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of healthcare
services are reported as revenue and expenses. Transactions incidental to the provision of healthcare
services are reported as nonoperating gains and losses.

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions include
revenue and gains in excess {deficient) of expenses and losses. Changes in net assets without donor
restrictions, which are excluded from revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses, consistent
with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using
contributions, which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets)
and contributed capital from (returned to) minority partners for consolidated joint ventures.

The Corporations consider demand deposits with banks, cash on hand, and all highly liquid debt
instruments (including repurchase agreements) purchased with original maturity dates of three months
or less to be cash and cash equivalents, excluding those instruments classified as assets whose use is
limited or restricted. Short-term investments consist of money market funds or mutual funds that are
held and managed by an external broker. These funds have not had a specific limitation placed on
them to classify them as assets whose use is limited or restricted. Cash equivalents held by investment
managers are trealed as an investing activity in the consoclidated statement of cash flows.

Assets limited as to use include amounts held by the bond trustee for payment of principal and interest
donor restricted investments and beneficial interests in perpetual trusts, and designated assets set
aside for self-insurance, capital improvements, and other. Assets whose use is limited required for
current liabilities are reported as current assets and are also used at the Corporations' boards of
directors’ discretion. Assets whose use is limited required for current liabilities are required as approved
by the Corporations’ board of directors to cover all cutstanding current liabilities at least annually.

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investment return (including
realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included in
revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses as all investments are considered to be trading
securities unless the income or loss is restricted by donors, in which case the investment return is
recorded directly to net assets with donor restrictions. Investment return of unrestricted investments is
reported as nonoperating gains and losses. Unrealized gains and losses of permanently and
investments with donor restrictions are recorded directly to net assets with donor restrictions.
Management considers all investments to be trading securities and maintains cash equivalents as part
of the investment strategy and overall investing policy.
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The Corporations apply the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair
Value Measurement, for fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities and for fair value
measurement of nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

Except as otherwise disclosed, the carrying value of all financial instruments of the Corporations
approximates fair value. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined on a
first-in, first-out basis.

Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost or fair value at date of donation. Depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful lives of depreciable assets and is computed on the straight-line
method.

The Corporations evaluate iong-lived assets, such as buildings and equipment, for impairment on an
annual basis. Long-lived assets are considered to be impaired whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. No impairments have been recognized for the
years ended September 30, 2023 or 2022.

Unconditional promises to give cash or other assets are reported at fair value at the date the promise is
received. All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by donors. Contributions are reported as direct additions to net assets with donor restrictions
if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor
restrictions and reported as net assets released from restriction. Net assets with donor restriction used
for operating purposes are included in other operating revenue to the extent expended during the
period. Gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assels are reported as
restricted contributions. Expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired
long-lived assets are placed in service. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within
the same year as received are reported directly within the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets without donor restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions include the Hospital's interest in a charitable remainder trust,
beneficial interest in perpetual trusts, and denor-restricted contributions, the principal amount of which
may not be expended. Investment income of the perpetual trust is distributable within specified limits to
an unrelated party. Investment income of the charitable remainder trust is distributable within specified
limits to an unrelated party. All other net assets with denor restrictions are restricted primarily for land,
building, and equipment acquisitions at both September 30, 2023 and 2022.

Provisions for estimated self-insured professional, general liability, workers' compensation, and
employee healthcare risks include estimates of the ultimate cost of both reported losses and losses

9 (Continued)



SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

incurred but not reported as of the respective consolidated balance sheet dates. All liabilities are
presented as long term.

Net patient service revenue is reported at the amounts that reflect the consideration to which the
Hospital, Prime Medical, HSSI {collectively referred to as the Proyiders) expects to be entitled in
exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, third-party payors, and
others and include variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of
audits, reviews, and investigations. The Providers have agreements with third-party payors, which
provide for reimbursement at amounts different from their established rates. Explicit price concessions
under third-party reimbursement programs represent the difference between billings at list price and the
amounts reimbursed by Medicare, Blue Cross, and certain ather third-party payors; the difference
between billings at list price and the allocated cost of services provided to Medicaid patients; and any
differences between estimated retroactive third-party reimbursement settlements for prior years and
subsequent final settlements. The Hospital had $2,808 and $2,000 of changes in prior year settlement
accruals, resulting in an increase in net patient service revenue in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the Providers.
Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges
incurred in relation to total expected (or actual) charges. The Providers believe that this method
provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation
based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, performance obligalions satisfied over
time relate to patients in the Hospital receiving inpatient acute care services or patients and receiving
outpatient services. The Providers measure the performance obligation from admission into the
Hospital, or the commencement of an outpatient service, to the point when it is no longer required to
provide services to that patient, which is generally at the time of discharge or completion of the
outpatient services. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is generally
recognized when goods are provided to patients and customers in a retail setting (e.g.,
pharmaceuticals and medical equipment), and the Providers do not believe it is required to provide
additional goods or services related to that sale.

The Providers determine the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and services
provided, reduced by explicit price concessions provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to
uninsured patients in accordance with the Health System's policy, and implicit price concessions
provided to uninsured patients. The Providers determine their estimates of contractua! adjustments and
discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount policies, and historical experience. The
Providers determine their estimate of implicit price concessions based on its historical collection
experience with this class of patients.

Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews, or investigations
are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the estimated
transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are estimated based on the terms of the
payment agreement with the payor, correspendence from the payor, and historical settiement activity,
including an assessment to ensure that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive
adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as
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adjustments become known (i.e., new information becomes available) or as years are settled or are no
longer subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations.

Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payors are responsible for related deductibles and
coinsurance, which vary in amount. The Providers also provide services to uninsured patients and
offers those uninsured patients a discount, either by policy or law, from standard charges. The
Providers estimate the transaction price for patients with deductibles and coinsurance and from those
who are uninsured based on historical experience and current market conditions. In evaluating the
collectability of patients’ accounts receivable, the Providers analyze their past history and identify
trends for each of their major payor sources of revenue to estimate the variable consideration.
Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of revenue in evaluating the
variable consideration. The initial estimate of the transaction price is determined by reducing the
standard charge by any explicit price concessions, discounts, and implicit price concessions.
Subsequent changes to the estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as adjustments to
patient service revenue in the period of the change.

The Providers use a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a collective
group rather than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The portfolios consist of major
payor classes for inpatient revenue and major payor classes and types of services provided for
outpatient revenue. Based on the historical collection trends and other analyses, the Providers believe
that revenue recognized by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have
been recognized if an individual contract approach was used.

The Providers provided for an allowance against patient accounts receivable for amounts that could
become uncollectible. The Providers estimate this allowance based on the aging of accounts
receivable, historical collection experience by payor, and other relevant factors. These various factors
can impact collection and trends, such as changes in the economy, which in turn have an impact on
unemployment rates and the number of uninsured and underinsured patients, the increased burden of
copayments to be made by patients with insurance coverage, and business practices related to
collection efforts. These factors continuously change and can have an impact on collection trends the
estimation process used by the Providers. The Providers records implicit price concessions in the
period of services on the basis of past experience, which has historically indicated that many patients
are unresponsive or are otherwise unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially
responsible.

Other operating revenue includes rental income, joint venture aclivity, and other miscellaneous
revenue.

The Health System, the Hospital, MCREC, and the Foundation are not-for-profit corporations as
described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and are exempt from federal
income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. A provision for income taxes
has not been recorded for HSSI, as there are net operating losses of approximately $31,931 available
for carryforward, which expire at various future dates through 2039. In assessing the realizability of
deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
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become deductible. Deferred tax assets have been offset in their entirety by valuation allowances at
both September 30, 2023 and 2022 based upon management’s assessment that those deferred tax
assets may not be utilized.

The Corporations account for tax positions in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes.

ASC Topic 740 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions and also provides guidance on
when the tax positions are recognized in an entity's consolidated financial statements and how the
values of these positions are determined. The Corporations do not have any liabilities recognized for
uncertain tax positions.

The Corporations account for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with

ASC Subtopic 815-10, Denvatives and Hedging — Overall, as amended, which requires that an entity
recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and measure
those instruments at fair values. The fair values of the interest rate swap programs are included as a
component of the assets whose use is limited under bond indenture agreements — held by trustee in
the accompanying consclidated balance sheets. The derivatives are not designated as hedge
instruments, and therefore, the change in fair value of the interest rate swap is recorded as a
component of nonoperating gains (losses) — other, net in the period of change as well as nel settlement
of derivative instruments. '

The Corporations follow the provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leasas
(ASC Topic 842). ASU No. 2018-02, which requires lessees to recognize leases on the balance sheet
and to disclose key information about leasing arrangements. The standard establishes a right-of-use
(ROU) model that requires a lessee to recognize an ROU asset and lease liability on the balance sheet
for all leases with a term longer than 12 months. Leases are classified as finance or operating, with
classification affecting the pattern and classification of the expense recognition in the statement of
operations. The Corporations are a lessee in several noncancellable operating leases, primarily for
office space, transportation, medical, and office equipment.

The Corporations recognize an ROU) asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. For
operating leases, the lease liability is initially and subsequently measured at the present value of the
unpaid paymenis at the lease commencement date.

Key estimates and judgments include how the Corporations determine the following: (1) the discount
rate it uses to discount the unpaid lease payments to present value; (2) lease term; and (3) lease
payments.

- ASC Topic 842 requires a [essee to discount its unpaid lease payments using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, its incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Corporations cannot determine the interest rate implicit in the lease because it does
not have access to the lessor's estimated residual value or the amount of the lessor's deferred
initial direct costs. Therefore, the Corporations generally uses a risk-free rate as the discount rate
for the lease. The Corporations’ incremental borrowing rate for a lease is the rate of interest it
wouid have to pay on a collateralized basis to borrow an amount equal to the lease payments
under similar terms. Because the Corporations do not generally borrow on a collateralized basis, it
uses the interest rate it pays on its noncollateralized borrowings as an input to deriving an
appropriate incremental borrowing rate, adjusted for the amount of the lease payments, the lease
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term, and the effect on that rate of designating specific collateral with a value equal to the unpaid
lease payments for that lease.

— The lease term for all of the Corporations’ leases includes the noncancelable period of the lease
plus any additional periods covered by either one of the Corporations’ options to extend (or not to
terminate) the lease that the Corporations are reasonably certain to exercise, or an option to
extend (or not to terminate) the lease controlled by the lessor.

— Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

o Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments, owed over the lease term (which
includes termination penalties the Corporations would owe if the lease term assumes the
Corporations’ exercise of a termination option).

o Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or
rate at the lease commencement date.

o Amounts expected to be payable under the Corporations’ provided residual value guarantee;
and

o The exercise price of the Corporations’ option to purchase the underlying asset if the
Corporations’ are reasonably certain to exercise the option.

The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred less any lease incentives received.

For operating leases, the ROLU asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the
carrying amount of the lease liability, plus initial direct costs, plus {minus) any prepaid {accrued) lease
payments, less the unamonrtized balance of lease incentives received. Lease expense for lease
payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Variable lease payments associated with the Corporations’ leases are recognized when the event,
activity, or circumstances in the lease agreement on which those payments are assessed occurs.
Variable lease payments are presented as operating expense in the Corporations' consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions in the same line item as
expense arising from fixed lease payments (operating leases).

ROU assets for operating are periodically reduced by impairment losses. The Corporations use the
long-lived assets impairment guidance in ASC Subtopic 360-10, Property, Plant, and Equipment —
Overall, to determine whether an ROU asset is impaired, and if so, the amount of the impairment loss
to recognize. No impairment losses were recognized during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023,

The Corporations monitor for events or changes in circumstances that require a reassessment of one
of its leases. When a reassessment results in the remeasurement of a lease liability, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the corresponding ROU asset unless doing so would
reduce the carrying amount of the ROU asset to an amount less than zero. In that case, the amount of
the adjustment that would result in a negative ROU asset balance in profit or loss.
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Operating iease ROU assets are presented as operating lease ROU assets on the consolidated
balance sheet. The current portion of operating lease liabilities is included in other current liabilities and
the long-term portion is presented separately as operating lease liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheet.

The Corporations have elected not to recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The Corporations have elected not to apply the short-term
lease recognition and measurement exemption for other classes of leased assets. The Corporations
recognizes the lease payments associated with its short-term leases as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments associated with these leases are recognized and
presented in the same manner as for all other of the Corporations’ leases.

+ Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2022 consolidated financial statements to conform to
the 2023 presentation.

Other significant accounting policies are set forth in the following notes.

(3) Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

As of September 30, 2023, and 2022, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for
general expenditure, such as operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital
construction costs not financed with debt, were as foilows:

2023 2022
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,119 30,080
Short-term investments 5,795 4,708
Assets whose use is limited 276,824 270,317
Patient accounts receivable and other receivables 112,538 100,407
Total financial assets and liquidity resources
available within one year 428,276 405,492
Current liabilities:
Current installment of long-term debt 8,405 9,085
Current portion of operating lease liability 5,171 4,894
Accounts payable 64,047 46,649
Accrued salaries and wages 30,964 32,188
Accrued expense 22,322 20,242
Estimated payable under third-party reimbursement
programs 31,758 37,482
Total current liabilities 162,667 150,550
Net resources available $ 265,609 254,942

14 {Continued)



SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Assets whose use is limited or restricted exclude assets restricted for self-insurance liabilities and those
restricted under bond indenture agreements. All other noncurrent investments, although intended to satisfy
long-term obligations, could be utilized within the next year, if necessary.

{4) Net Patient Service Revenue

A summary of the reimbursement methodologies with major third-party payors is as follows:

(@)

(b)

Medicare

The Hospital is paid for inpatient acute care, outpatient, rehabilitative, and home health services
rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries under prospectively determined rates. These rates vary
according to patient classification systems that are based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The
prospectively determined rates are not subject to retroactive adjustment. The Hospital's classification of
patients under the prospective payment systems and the appropriateness of patient admissions are
subject to validation reviews.

For certain services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries, the Providers' reimbursement is based upon
cost or other reimbursement methodologies. The Providers are reimbursed at a tentative rate, with final
settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal
intermediary. Medicare reimbursement reports through September 30, 2018 have been audited and
final settled by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.

Medicaid

The Hospital is paid for inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries under
prospectively determined rate per discharge. These rates vary according to a patient classification
system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Medicaid outpatient services are
reimbursed based on fee schedules. Medicaid reimbursement methodologies may be subject to
pericdic adjustment, as well as to changes in existing payment levels and rates, based on the amount
of funding available to the State of lllinois (the State) Medicaid program, and any such changes could
have a significant effect on the Hospital's revenue.

The Hospital continues to participate in the State of llinois (State) provider assessment program that
assists in the financing of its Medicaid program. Under the current Hospital Assessment Program
pursuant to Public Act 100-581, the lllinois hospital community has increased revenue related to
Medicaid patient claims and lesser revenue related to the supplemental payments through the
assessment program. Pursuant to this program, hospitals within the State are required to remit
payment to the State of lllinois Medicaid program under an assessment formula approved by the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). The Hospital has included its assessment of
$21,485 and $17,280 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, within general
and administrative expense. The assessment program also provides hospitals within the State with
additional Medicaid reimbursement based on funding formulas also approved by CMS. The Hospital
has included its additional reimbursement of $31,739 and $27,362 for the years ended September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively, within net patient service revenue.
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Blue Cross

The Providers also participate as a provider of healthcare services under a reimbursement agreement
with Blue Cross. The basis for payment under this agreement is negotiated by the Providers and
includes prospectively determined rate per discharge, discounts from established charges, capitation,
CPT fee schedules, and prospectively determined per diem rates.

Other

The Providers have also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment under
these agreements is negotiated by the Providers and includes prospectively determined rate per
discharge, discounts from established charges, capitation, and prospectively determined per diem
rates.

A summary of the Providers’ utilization percentages based upon net patient service revenue is as
follows:

2023 2022
Medicare 40.7 % 41.4 %
Medicaid 11.8 10.5
Managed care/commercial 45.6 46.2
Self-pay and other 1.9 1.9
100.0 % 100.0 %

For receivables associated with self-pay patients {which includes both patients without insurance and
patients with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exisls for part of
the bill}, the Providers have determined they have provided an implicit price concession. The Providers
record this in the period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that many
patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible.
The implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference
between amounts bilied to patients and the amounts the Providers expect to coliect based on their
collection history with those patients.

The Providers recognize net patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who
have third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For
uninsured patients that do not qualify for charity care, the Providers recognize revenue on the basis of
their standard rates for services provided (or on the basis of discounted rates, if negotiated or provided
by policy). On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Providers' uninsured
patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the Providers record a
significant provision for implicit price concessions related to uninsured patients in the period the
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services are provided. Net patient service revenue, net of implicit and explicit price concessions,
recognized in the period from these major payor sources, is as follows:

2023 2022
Medicare $ 212,840 201,814
Medicaid 61,912 51,339
Managed care/commercial 238,581 224,701
Self-pay and other 9,756 9,089
Net patient senice revenue $ 523,089 486,943

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Providers grant credit without collateral to their patients, most of whom are local residents and are
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors as
of September 30, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Medicare 46.0 % 46.5 %
Medicaid 11.4 6.4
Managed care/contract payors/Blue Cross 28.8 28.5
Self-pay 8.4 10.1
Commercial and other 5.4 8.5
100.0 % 100.0 %

Charity Care

The Hospital provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge
or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. In addition, reimbursement for
services provided to Medicaid program beneficiaries is substantially less than the cost to the Hospital for
providing these services.

The Hospital maintains records of the amount of charges forgone and related cost for services and supplies
furnished under its charity care policy, as well as the estimated differences between the cost of services
provided to Medicaid patients and the reimbursement under that program estimated based on an overall
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cost-to-charge ratio. The following information measures the estimated level of charity care provided and
unreimbursed cost under the Medicaid program during 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Estimated charity care costs for non-Medicaid patients 3 2,506 4,120
Excess of cost over reimbursement for senices provided to
Medicaid patients (1) 12,867 15,444

(1)} The netimpact of Medicaid assessment program has been allocated to each year based upon the
State's fiscal year.

{7) Investments

A summary of the composition of the Corporations’ investment porifolio at September 30, 2023 and 2022 is

as follows:

2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents % 28,918 18,191
Money market funds 11,303 2,770
Commeon stock 36,045 22,305
U.S. Treasury securities 17,832 13,013
Mutual funds 212,142 236,858
Corporate bonds and notes 8,805 10,698
U.S. agency securities 1,170 2.827
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 7,395 6,908

3 323,610 313,570

Investments are reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at September 30 as follows:

2023 2022

Short-term inestments $ 5,795 4,708

Assets whose use is limited or restricted, excluding pledges
receivable:

Required for current liabilities 11 4

By board for capital improvements and other 276,824 270,317

By board for self-insurance 31,684 29,970

Under bond indenture agreements — held by trustee 71 211

Donor-restricted investments 1,830 1,452

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 7,395 6,908

$ 323,610 313,570
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The composition of investment return on the Corporations’ investment porifolio for 2023 and 2022 is as

follows:
2023 2022
Interest and dividend income, net of fees, and expenses $ 1,231 2,832
Net realized gains on sale of investments 11,922 38,407
Net change in unrealized gains and losses during the
holding period 6,043 (90,948}
3 19,196 (49,709)

The Corporations have designated all unrestricted investments to be trading securities and maintains cash
equivalents as part of the investment strategy and overall investing policy. Investment return is included in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 as

follows:
2023 2022
Nonoperating gains — investment income, net $ 18,710 (47,339)
Net realized and unrealized gains and losses on
donor-restricted investments 486 (2,370)
$ 19,196 (49,709)

(8) Fair Value Measurements
(a) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporations in estimating the fair value of
its financial instruments:

o The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets for the following approximates
fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments: cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments, patient accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and
estimated third-party payor settlements.

s Assets whose use is limited or restricted: Fair values are estimated based on prices provided by
their investment managers and custodian banks. Common stocks and U.S. Treasury securities are
measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held.
Corporate bonds and notes, U.S. agency securities, and asset-backed securities are measured
using observable market inputs. Mutual funds are valued using net asset value (NAV). Changes in
market conditions and the economic environment may impact the NAV of the funds and
consequently the fair value of the Corporations' interest in the funds. The carrying value equals fair
value.
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Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts: The assets held by third-party trustees comprise common
stock, mutual funds, money market funds, corporate bonds and notes, U.S. agency securities, and
U.S. Treasury notes. The Trust Administrators use quoted market prices or other observable
market inputs to estimate the fair value of its beneficial interests based on the underlying assets of
the trusts, as provided by the trust administrators.

Fair value of interest rate swaps is determined using pricing models developed based on the SOFR
swap rate and other observable market data. The value was determined after considering the
potential impact of collateralization and netting agreements, adjusted to reflect nonperformance risk
of both the counterparty and the Corporations.

{b) Fair Value Hierarchy

ASC Subtopic 820-10, Fair Value Measurement, establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation technigues used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements)
and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant uncbservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Corporations have the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are cbservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable
or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities.

Level 3 inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based
on the lowest-level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
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The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at

September 30, 2023:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,119 33,119 - -
Short-term imestments:
Money market funds 2.863 2,883 - -
Mutual funds 2,410 2,410 - —
Common stock 522 522 - -
Assets whose use is limited or restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents 37.358 37,358 — —
Common stock 35,523 35,523 - -
U.S. Treasury securities 17,832 17,832 — —_
Mutual funds 210,218 210,218 - -—
Coiporate bonds and notes 8,319 —_ 8,319 —
U.S. agency securities 1,170 — 1,170 —
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 7,395 — — 7,395
Subtotal 323,610 306,726 9,489 7,395
Fair value of swap agreements 71 - 71 -—
Total financial assets $ 356,800 339,845 9,560 7,398
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The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at

September 30, 2022:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3
Short-term investments:
Money market funds
Mutual funds
Common stock
Assets whose use is limited or restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents
Common stock
U.S. Treasury securities
Mutual funds
Corporate bonds and notes
U.S. agency securities
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts

Subtotal
Fair value of swap agreements

Total financial assets $

Total Level 4 Level 2 Level 3
30,060 30,060 - -
2,770 2,770 - -
1,628 1,628 - —
310 310 — -
18,193 18,193 — -
21,994 21,994 — —_
13,013 13,013 - —
235,229 235,229 - -
10,698 - 10,698 —
2,827 — 2,827 -
6,908 - — 6,908
313,570 293,137 13,525 6,908
211 - 211 —
343,841 323.197 13,736 6,908

The Corporations’ policy is to recognize transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy in the year
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer, There were no transfers into or out of
Level 1 or Level 2 for the year ended September 30, 2023 or 2022.
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The following table presents the activity for the beneficial interest in perpetual trusts for the years
ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 for assets measured at fair value using unobservable inputs
classified in Level 3:

Beneficial interest in trusts

2023 2022
Beginning fair value $ 6,908 9,278
Current year contributions —_ —
Interest and dividends, net of fees and expenses 167 134
Realized gains (losses), net (74) 417
Change in unrealized gains and losses, net 549 (1,842)
Distributions {155) (1,079)
Ending fair value $ 7,395 6,908

(9) Land, Buildings, and Equipment, Net
A summary of land, buildings, and equipment, net at September 30, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost depreciation Cost depreciation

Land $ 37,108 - 37,108 —

Land improvements 20,215 8,879 20,208 7,824
Buildings, building improvements,

and fixed equipment 456,074 150,108 453,133 135,375

Major movable equipment 272,941 227,557 263,767 212,636

Construction in progress 26,047 —_ 14,036 -

$ 812,385 386,544 788,251 355,835

Since moving its main facilities to New Lenox, lllinois, in 2018 the Hospital demalished its former Hospital
structure in Joliet, lllinois. The Hespital has land held for sale of $23,035 as of September 30, 2023 and
2022 relating to the former hospital site.

The Corporations are currently engaged in various construction and renovation projects. There were no
contractual commitments as of September 30, 2023. Interest cost is capitalized as a component cost of
significant capital projects, net of any interest income earned on unexpended project-specific borrowed
funds. No interest was capitalized during 2023 or 2022.
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(10) Long-Term Debt
A summary of iong-term debt at September 30, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
lllinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2008A, principal is due annually at fixed-interest
rates of 5.00% to 5.82%; interest is due semiannually
depending upon date of maturity through August 15, 2030 $ 50,580 56,030
llinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2010A, at a variable interest rate (effective rates of
4.13% and 1.11% for September 30, 2023 and 2022,
réspectively), maturing in fiscal year 2041 8,820 9,335
llincis Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2010B, at a variable interest rate (effective rates of
4.42% and 1.32% for September 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively), maturing in fiscal year 2040 5,920 6,260
llinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2015A, at a variable interest rate (effective rates of
4.40% and 2.11% for April 25, 2023 and September 30, 2022,
respectively), paid in full on April 25, 2023 — 1,175
Hlinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2015C, principal is due annually at fixed-interest
rate of 5.00%; interest is due semiannually depending on
date maturity through 2044 271,775 273,415
Tetal fixed and variable-rate debt 337,095 346,215
Less unamortized net bond premiums (12,996) (13,586)
Less unamortized hond issue costs 2,645 2,825
Total debt 347,446 356,976
Less current instaliments 8,405 9,095
Total long-term debt, excluding current
instaliments $ 339,041 347,881

The Hospital and the Health System (collectively known as the Obligated Group) entered into an Amended
and Restated Master Trust Indenture (Master Trust Indenture) dated as of June 1, 1996, as subsequently
supplemented and amended. The purpose of the Master Trust Indenture is to provide a mechanism for the
efficient and economical issuance of notes by individual members of the Obligated Group using the
collective borrowing capacity and credit rating of the Obligated Group. The Master Trust Indenture requires
members of the Obligated Group to make principal and interest payments on notes issued for their benefit
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as well as other Obligated Group member if the other members are unable to make such payments. The
Master Trust Indenture requires the Obligated Group to comply with financial and other covenant
requirements, including making deposits with the bond trustees for payment of principal and interest when
due on the individual series of bonds. The Obligated Group pledged a security interest in its gross revenue
as collateral on borrowings under the Master Trust Indenture.

The Series 2010A and Series 2010B principal is payable annually, with a balloon payment of $7.275 for
2010A due in fiscal year 2027 and a ballcon payment of $5,580 for 2010B due in fiscal year 2025. Interest
on the Series 2010A bonds is variable based on 80% of the sum of one-month Bloomberg ST Bank Yieid
(BSBY) plus 60 basis points and is payable monthly. Interest on the Series 20108 bonds is variable based
on 80% of the sum of cne-month Bloomberg ST Bank Yield (BSBY) plus 84 basis points and is payable
monthly. If the Cbligated Group chooses to extend the debt beyond the date of the balioon payment, the
interest rates will be reset by the lenders at a rate not to exceed 12%.

On January 1, 2015, the lllinois Finance Authority issued variable-rate revenue bonds, Series 2015A and
Series 20158, in the aggregate amount of $26,860 on behalf of the Obligated Group. On April 22, 2015, the
lllinois Finance Authority issued fixed-rate revenue refunding bonds, Series 2015C in the amount of
$2886,435 on behalf of the Obligated Group. The Obligated Group received a bond premium of $18,800 and
paid bond issue costs of $3,236 related to these issuances.

Scheduled annual principal payments on long-term debt for the ensuing five years and thereafter are as

follows:
Year:
2024 $ 8,405
2025 15,270
2026 10,720
2027 18,025
2028 11,335
Thereafter 273,340

$ 337,095

{(11) Derivative Instruments

The Corporations have an interest-rate-related derivative instrument to manage its exposure on debt
instruments. By using derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of changes in interest rates, the
Corporations are exposed to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparly to
perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive,
the counterparty owes the Corporations, which creates credit risk for the Corporations. When the fair value
of a derivative contract is negative, the Corporations owe the counterparty, and therefore, it does not
possess credit risk; however, the Corporations are required to post collateral to the counterparty when
certain thresholds as defined in the derivative agreements are met. Market risk is the adverse effect on the
value of a financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. The market risk associated with
interest raté changes is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and
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degree of market risk that may be undertaken. The Corporations’ management also mitigates risk through
periodic reviews of their derivative positions in the context of their total blended cost of capital.

The fair value of the swap is the estimated amount the Corporations would receive or pay to terminate the
swap agreement at the reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

The Corporations entered into two variable interest rate swap agreements on August 15, 2018 to offset
long-term fixed rates set on the Series 2008A debt issuance, with notional amounts of $50,580 and
$15,425 and maturity dates of August 5, 2023 and May 15, 2021, resﬁectively. The agreements were
amended and restated on May 12, 2021. Under the amended agreements, the notional amounts are
$50,580 and $10,595. The swap agreements have extended maturity dates of March 8, 2026 and May 20,
2022, respectively. The swap agreement that matured May 20, 2022 was not renewed or extended and the
swap was terminated, leaving the variable rate interest rate swap maturing March 8, 2026 as the one
outstanding at September 30, 2022 and 2023. The Corporations receive, on a monthly basis, 1.57% of
one-month SIFMA plus 65 basis points and either receive or pay cash seitiements semiannually
determined by the swap value at time of settlement. The fair value of the Series 2018 interest rate swap
agreement receivable of $71 and $211 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, is included as a
component of assets whose use is limited under bond indenture agreements in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. The change in fair value of the interest rate swap agreements of $(140) and
($173) in 2023 and 2022, respectively, has been included as a component of nonoperating gains (losses)
other, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without
donor restrictions. The differential to be paid or received under the Series 2018 interest rate swap
agreement is recognized monthly and has been included as a component of interest expense in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor restriction.

Pension Plans

The Health System, HSSI, MSO, and the Hospital sponsor various voluntary, defined-contribution, and
money purchase pension plans for all qualified, full-time employees. Benefits for individual employees are
the amounts that can be provided by the sums contributed and accumulated for each individuai employee.
The Health System, HSSI, MSQO, and the Hospital recognized expense under the terms of the plans in the
amount of $8,322 and $6,532 for 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Health System, HSSI, MSO, and the
Hospital fund the plans on a current basis.

The Health System also sponsors several supplemental retirement plans. Eligibility for these plans is
limited to specified employees. The supplemental plans are defined-benefit plans and are not qualified
plans under Section 401 of the Code. The Health System has recognized expense under the terms of
these supplemental retirement plans in the amount of $195 and $732 for 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Amounts owed to specified employees under the supplemental retirement plans are included in accrued
salaries and wages.
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{13) Self-Insured Risks

(@

(b)

fc)

Professional and General Liability

The Corporations maintain a self-insurance program for professional and general liability coverage.
The self-insurance program includes varying levels of self-insured retention and excess malpractice
insurance coverage purchased from commercial insurance carriers. In connection with the
self-insurance program, the Corporations have engaged the services of a professional actuarial
consultant to assist in the estimation of self-insurance provisions and claim liability reserves.

Provisions for estimated self-insured professional and general liability claims amounted to $3,170 and
$4,903 in 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses. It is
the opinion of management that the estimated professional and general liabilities accrued at
September 30, 2023 and 2022 are adequate to provide for the ultimate cost of potential losses resulting
from pending or threatened litigation; however, such estimates may be more or less than the amounts
ultimately paid when claims are resolved. The Corporations have also designated attorneys to handle
legal matters relating to malpractice and general liability claims. No portion of the accrual for estimated
self-insured professional and general liability claims has been reported as a current liability.

Workers’ Compensation

The Health System, HSSI, MSO, and the Hospital maintain a self-insurance program for workers'
compensation coverage. This program limits the self-insured retention to $650 per cccurrence.
Coverage from commercial insurance carriers is maintained for claims in excess of the self-insured
retention. Provisions for workers’ compensation claims amounted to $2,309 and $2,308 for 2023 and
2022, respectively, and are included in payroll taxes and fringe benefits expense. Management
believes the estimated self-insured workers' compensation claims liability, which is included within
accrued salaries and wages, of $3,245 and $3,300 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, is
adequate to cover the ultimate liability, however, such estimates may be more or less than the amounts
ultimately paid when claims are resolved.

Healthcare

The Health System, HSSI, and the Hospital also have a program of self-insurance for employee
healthcare coverage. Stop-loss reinsurance coverage is maintained for claims in excess of stop-loss
limits. Provisions for employee healthcare claims amounted to $17,927 and $17,224 for 2023 and
2022, respectively, and are included with payroll taxes and fringe benefits expense. It is the opinion of
management that the estimated healthcare costs accrued, which is included within accrued salaries
and wages, of $2,340 and $2,360 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, are adequate to
provide for the ultimate liability; however, final payouts as claims are paid may vary significantly from
estimated claim liabilities.
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(14) Investment in Joint Ventures
(a) Unconsolidated Affiliates

The Corporations have investments in organizations that are not majority owned or controlled by the
Corporations. These investments are accounted for using the cost or equity method of accounting. The
largest investments are disclosed in further detail below.

(i}

(ii)

UCMC/SCH Oncology JV, LLC

On March 22, 2010, the Hospital, along with the University of Chicago Medical Centers {UCMC),
became the founding members of UCMC/SCH Oncology JV, LLC (the Cancer Center), whose
purpose was to develop and operate a radiation oncology cancer center on the Hospital's campus.
The board is governed equally by the two members, who each has a 50% voting share. Pursuant
to the operating agreement, profits and losses are allocated approximately 60% to the Hospital and
approximately 40% to UCMC.

The Hospital accounts for its investment in the Cancer Center using the equity method of
accounting. As of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, the Cancer Center had unaudited
total assets of $32,090, members’ equity of $23,911, revenue of $12,875, and net income of
$6,279. As of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, the Cancer Center had unaudited total
assets of $19,052, members’ equity of $18,218, revenue of $11,697, and net income of $5.239.
The Cancer Center made cash distributions to the Hospital of $3,600 in 2022, and $0 in 2023, The
carrying value of the Hospital's investment in the Cancer Center is $14,347 and $10,931 as of
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and is included in other long-term assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Silver Oaks Behavioral, LLC

On December 2, 2016, the Hospital, along with US HealthVest, LLC, became the founding
members of Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital, whose purpose was to operate a 100-bed Behavioral
Health Hospital on the Hospital's campus. Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital opened for business in
January of 2019. The Hospital has an approximate 20% ownership in Silver Oaks Behavicral, LLC.
Pursuant to the operating agreement, profits and losses are allocated 20% to the Hospital and 80%
to US Health Vest, LLC.

The Hospital accounts for its investment in Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospitat, LLC using the equity
method of accounting. As of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, Silver Oaks Behavioral
Hospital, LLC had unaudited total assets of $39,634, members’ equity of $22,532, net revenue of
$31,908, and a net income of $5,372. As of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, Silver
Oaks Behavioral Hospital, LLC had unaudited total assets of $22,995, members’ equity of $17,416,
net revenue of $26,072, and a net income of $1,724. The carrying value of the Hospital's
investment in Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital, LLC is $4,488 as of September 30, 2023 and
$3,523 as of September 30, 2022 and is included in other long-term assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.
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(iii)  Silver Cross/USP Surgery Center, LLC. And Silver Cross Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC.

In August of 2017, the Hospital, along with United Surgical Partners International, Inc. became the
founding members of Silver Cross/USP Surgery Center, LLC., and along with independent
physicians founded the Silver Cross Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC., whose purpose was to
operate an outpatient surgery center on the Hospital's campus. The surgery center opened for
business in December of 2017. The Hospital has a 49.9% ownership in Silver Cross/USP Surgery
Center, LLC. and Silver Cross/USP Surgery Center, LLC. has a 55.65% ownership in Sitver Cross
Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC. Overall, this creates an approximate 27.77% ownership for the
Health System in Silver Cross Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC. Pursuant to the operating
agreement, profits and losses are allocated 27.77% to the Hospital, 27.88% to United Surgical
Partners Inc, and 44.35% to the individual invested physicians.

The Hospital accounts for its investment in Silver Cross Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC., using
the equity method of accounting. As of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, Silver Cross
Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC., had unaudited total assets of $6,067, members’ equity of $326,
net revenue of $14,727, and a net income of $3,052. As of and for the year ended September 30,
2022, Silver Cross Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC., had unaudited total assets of $5,681,
members’ equity of $174, net revenue of $13,335, and a net income of $2,054. The carrying value
of the Hospital's investment in Silver Cross Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC., is $233 as of
September 30, 2023 and $208 as of September 30, 2022 and is included in other long-term assets
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Silver Cross Ambulatory Surgery Center, LLC.,
made cash distributions to the Hospital of $875 in 2023 and $1,158 in 2022.

(b) Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Joint Ventures

The Corporations apply the guidance under ASC Topic 810, Consolidation, for the presentation of
noncontrolling interests, reporting it as a separate component of net assets without donor restrictions
and including a schedule reconciling beginning and ending balances of controlling and noncontrolling
interests of net assets in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Changes in net assets without donor restrictions attributable to the Corporations and to noncontrolling
interest in consolidated joint ventures for the year ended September 30, 2023 are as follows:

Balance, September 30, 2021
Revenue and gains deficient of expenses and losses
Other changes in net assets without donor
restrictions:
Contributed capital from minority partners
in consolidated joint ventures
Net assets released from restriction for
land, building, and equipment
acquisitions financed by net assets
with donor restrictions

Balance, September 30, 2022

Revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses
Other changes in net assets without donor
restrictions:
Contributed capital returned to minority partners
in consclidated joint ventures
Net assets released from restriction for
land, building, and equipment
acquisitions financed by net assets
with donor restrictions

Balance, September 30, 2023

(15) Endowments and Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Controlling Noncontrolling
Total interest interest
440,527 431,163 9,364
{58,782) (58,745) (37)
2,024 — 2,024
2,013 2,013 s
385,782 374,431 11,351
22,594 22,625 (31
(524) — (524)
880 880 —
408,732 397,936 10,796

The Corporations have donor-restricted endowment funds (collectively referred to as the Funds), the
principal of which may not be expended. The interest and dividend income from investment of the Funds is
to be used for a variety of purposes consistent with the intent of the donor. The interest and dividend
income earned on the Funds are transferred to net assets with donor restrictions until appropriated for
expenditure by the Corporations. All other changes in the Funds, including unrealized and realized gains
and losses, are recorded directly to the Funds, which are classified as net assets with donor restrictions.

The Corporations also have beneficial interests in trusts {collectively referred to as the Trusts). The
Corporations have recorded their share of the principal of the Trusts as net assets with donor restrictions.
Distributions from the Trusts are recorded within net assets without donor restrictions if unrestricted;
otherwise, they are classified as net assets with donor restrictions until appropriated for expenditure.
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The activity of the Funds and Trusts for the year ended September 30, 2023 is as follows:

Donor-restricted Beneficial
endowment interest in
Total funds trusts
Beginning fair value $ 6,879 932 6,047
Current year contributions 20 20 —_
Investment return:
Interest and dividends 177 — 177
Realized gains, net 29 — 29
Change in unrealized gains, net 459 — 459
Disbursements:
Fees and expenses (72) — (72)
Assets released from restriction (147) — {147)
Ending fair value L 7,445 952 6,493

The activity of the Funds and Trusts for the year ended September 30, 2022 is as follows:

Donor-restricted Beneficial
endowment interest in
Total funds trusts
Beginning fair value $ 8,200 912 7,288
Current year contributions 20 20 -
Investment return:
Interest and dividends 161 — 161
Realized gains, net 130 — 130
Change in unrealized gains, net {1,326) — {1,326)
Disbursements:
Fees and expenses (67) — (67)
Assets released from restriction (139) — (139)
Ending fair value $ 6,979 932 6,047

The historical cost basis of the Funds was approximately $952 and $932 for September 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively. The fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the amount of the original donation as a result of unfavorable market conditions. There were
no such deficiencies as of September 30, 2023 or 2022.
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(16) Leases
Information as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023:

The Corporations have several noncancelable operating leases, primarily for office space, transportation,
medical, and office equipment that expire over the next 13 years. The Corporation includes renewal options
in the lease term if the options are considered to be reasonably certain of being exercised. Because the
Corporations are not reasonably certain to exercise these renewal options, the options are not considered
in determining the lease term, and associated potential option payments are excluded from lease
payments. The Corporations' leases generally do not include termination options for either party to the
lease or restrictive financial or other covenants. Payments due under the lease contracts include fixed
payments plus, for many of the Corporations’ leases, variable payments. For office space leases that
include variable payments, those include payments for the Corporations' proportionale share of the
building's property taxes, insurance, and common area maintenance.

The components of lease cost for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

2023 2022
Operating lease cost $ 8,772 6,749
Variable lease cost 1,312 1,349
Total lease cost $ 8,084 8,098

Amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

2023 2022

Operating lease ROU asset $ 28,719 34,435
Operating lease accumulated depreciation (3,622) (4,208)

Operating lease ROU assets 25,097 30,227
Current portion of operating lease liability 5171 4,894
Long-term operating lease liahility, net of current portion 21,528 26,631

Total operating lease liabilities 26,699 31,525

Operating lease liabilities, net of ROU liabilities $ 1,602 1,298
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Other information related to operating leases as of September 30, 2023 was as follows:

2023 2022
Supplemental information:
Operating cash flows from capitalized operating leases $ 5,281 4,789
Weighted average remaining lease term — capitalized
operating leases (in years) 7.29 7.83
Weighted average discount rate - capitalized operating leases 0.98 % 0.94 %

Amounts disclosed for ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations include amounts added to
the carrying amount of ROU assets resulting from lease modifications and reassessments.

Maturities of lease liabilities under noncancelable leases as of September 30, 2023 are as follows:

Operating
leases

2024 3 5,360

2025 5,108

2026 5,149

2027 2,384

2028 1,726

Thereafter 7,626
Total undiscounted lease

payments 27,353

Less imputed interest (1,203)

Total lease liabilities $ 26,150

Information as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023:

The Corporations occupy space in certain facilities under long-term noncancelable operating lease
arrangements. Total equipment rental, asset lease, and facility rental expenses in 2023 was $11,025.
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The following table is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments to be made under operating
leases as of September 30, 2023 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year:

Amount

2024 $ 5,360
2025 5108
2026 5,149
2027 2,384
2028 1,726
Thereatfter 7.626

$ 27,353

{17) Commitments and Contingencies

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d}

Medicare Reimbursement

The Hospital recognized $212,840 of net patient service revenue during 2023 from services provided to
Medicare beneficiaries. Federal legislation routinely includes provisions to modify Medicare payments
to healthcare providers. Changes in Medicare reimbursement as a result of the CMS implementation of
the provisions of Medicare legislation and other healthcare reform initiatives may have an adverse
effect on the Hospital's net patient service revenue.

Litigation
The Corporations are involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. In consultation with

legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be resolved without material adverse
effect on the Corporations’ financial position or results of operatians.

Regulatory Investigations

Federal agencies routinely conduct regulatory investigations and compliance audits of healthcare
providers. The Corporations are subject to these regulatory efforts. Management is currently unaware
of any regulatory matters that may have a material adverse effect on the Corporations’ financial
position or results of operations.

Tax Exemption for Sales Tax and Property Tax

Effective Juna 14, 2012, the Governor of lllinois signed into law Public Act 97-0688, which creates
standards for state sales tax and property tax exemptions in lllinois. The law establishes new standards
for the issuance of charitable exemptions, including requirements for a nonprofit hospital to certify
annually that in the prior year, it provided an amount of qualified services and activities to low-income
and underserved individuals with a value at least equal to the Hospital's estimated property tax liability
The Corporations certified in 2023 and 2022 and have not recorded a liability for related property taxes
based upon management's current determination of qualified services provided.
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(e} Investment Risk and Uncertainties

The Corporations invest in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various
risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with

certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

{18} Functional Expenses

The Health System provides healthcare services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related o providing these services included in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets without donor restrictions as of September 30, 2023 and 2022 corresponding totals are as

follows:
Program
activities Supporting activities
Healthcare
services Administration Fundraising Total
2023:
Salaries and wages $ 190,021 12,144 232 202,397
Payroll taxes and fringe
benefits 43,326 2,769 58 46,153
General and administrative 165,055 12,434 536 168,025
Supplies 110,862 — 60 110,922
Depreciation and amortization 31,332 477 — 31,809
Interest 15,840 — — 15,840
$ 546,436 27,824 886 575,146
2022
Salaries and wages $ 173,338 11,080 254 184,672
Payroll laxes and fringe
benefits 40,304 2577 64 42945
General and administrative 142,806 11,461 617 154,884
Supplies 103,364 — 68 103,432
Depreciation and amortization 32,771 499 — 33,270
Interest 14,305 — — 14,305
$ 506,888 25617 1,003 533,508
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Some categories of natural class expenses are attributable to more than one activity and require allocation,
applied on a consistent basis. Property costs, including depreciation, are allocated on the basis of square
footage. Indirect salaries and benefits are allocated on the basis of budgeted full-time equivalent
employees. Purchased services and supplies are assigned directly to specific activities as expenditures are
made.

Related Parties

Members of the Board of Trustees, officers, and employees are subject to the Health System's conflict of
interest policies, under which business and financial relationships must be disclosed annually and are
subject to review and approval. From time to time, the Health System may obtain goods and services in the
ordinary course of business from entities with which certain of the Health System Trustees may be
associated.

Subsequent Events

In connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and in accordance with the
recently issued ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events, the Corporations evaluated subsequent events after
the consoclidated balance sheet date of September 30, 2023 through January 29, 2024, which was the date
the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, and other than those noted above, there
were no items to disclose.
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Sitvar Cross
Biva Haslth Hosphal Midwasl
Cross Sarvice and Sitvar Community Slivar Essantinl
Haalth Systame, Madical Cross Crots Prima Health
Assets Systam Ing, Centers Foundation Cotporsion MSO. LLC Madical Partnars Eliminations  Consclidated
Cutrant sssets
Cash and cash aquivaients 3 2248 m 17,389 78 152 {v88) 557 12.403 b Nug
ShortAetm investments - 1sn 2 8 - - - = 5.795
Asaeis whose une 18 hmiled of reslricted. reguired for cuireny
habhlas —_ —_ 11 -— -— - _ —_ —_ 1
Pabent sccaunts recenatie - 2598 59.929 — — 345 - - 62872
D trom afMhates 80,684 3918 135808 2077 7.608 55,08 - {207 9404 -
Othe recevables 200 147} 1561 - 78 a5 - amn o 49 565
Invantory — — 9587 - - — — - - 587
Prepaid axpanses snd ether 257 128 810 15 5 211 28 el 7263
Teta! currant ssuats 63,793 10,399 255888 2277 7.843 94,508 1,030 20714 (287.940) 168.313
Assels whose ue 18 hmited of festncled. miciuding sasets.
raquitad Ios current habdibes
By board for taptsl Hmprovemants and other - - 278824 - — - - - - 276 824
8y baard for saif-nsurance 31,684 - - - —_ - - - - 3 884
Undar bond indantuse ageamants — hatd by tusles —_ - N —_ —_ —_ - - - T4
Pladges recervable - - 374 - - ITé
Donar-restncied vestments - - 1,830 - - - = Lan
Banehaal intstslin perpatual rusts — — 7.395 - - - - - = 1305
Total pyxats whose ute 18 hmiited of iesincted J1.684 - 286,494 - - - - - - s
Land. tualcings. and equipment. net - 2778 IB282 - 7018 14,620 2743 ax e
Other assets
Land he'd for asle — e 23,035 - - - - - - 23035
Investments 22650 - = - - - - — 122 650 -
axces ractvety 8,396 - - - - — = - - 6,396
Cpataing leass nght of v sssats - 3,040 21148 - - 25.087
Cihet long-lerm asaate = = 74 208 - -— 1,500 2 155,598) 20128
Tolwl sisets ] 124.523 17.126 1038833 2.277 25.061 110,829 3.815 20.714 pu 1"! 985 985
e S—————  iibaie—— — — — ———
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Llatilities and Nel Assats
Cursant Rabribes
Curtemd insiaitmants of long-la:m debt
Current pecbon of opaiating lease katity
Actoun's pryable
Acctued dalines snd wiges
Acgrued expenses
Estmated payabies undet third-party resmbursemant programs
Dus to affissles

Total curreni hatalibes:
Estimated seifansived professonal and general babity ciems
Long-term debt, excleding Curzant installmants.
Longlerm aparating fease kabikity, nel ol current paction,
Capmtal jemse and cther long-tarm kabikbes. et of curtent parton
Total kabsibes

Nat snaets joslio))
Net assars (dafiat) wihoul JORSH resthnctions
n Joint vemuies

Tolsl net axseis (dafint) wihaul doner restnebons
Nel assats with donot reatrichons

Toted nat ssaets (dehatl)

Totel habdities #ndd nal assals

See accompanymg independent sudiors’ 1eport
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Consohidaing Schedule - Balance Shiat Informabon
September 30 2023

(Amounts in thousands}

Scheduls 1

k1L

Silvar Cioss
Shver Hualth Hosplisl Midwasl
Cross Servica and Sityar Community Silvar Essential
Health Syatema, Madical Cross. Real Estale Cross Prime Haalth

Syvlam Ine. Canters Foundation Corporation R3Q Medicsl Paitners. Eliminstions _Consolidated

= o 8405 - - — - -— 8.40%

—_ L) 4,368 c = - - _ _ 5171

e 122 50,779 - 182 12354 e ELh - 84,047

2997 4,965 2,708 - e - - = 30.084

480 5 3857 k=] 1954 - 142 18,581 - nin

- - 31,758 - - - - - — 39758

54,923 43184 108,184 a4 45076 38139 - = {287 94) -

58.525 45,181 220037 447 48417 50,791 250 16,964 {287.940) 182 687

A 497 _ - —_ - _ - - - 44487

- - 339,041 - - - - - - 336.041

- 1.280 18248 - - - - - = 21,528

— - — — a8 - - 931
103022 52441 505326 s67_ ___A8d2 | So7e) i aeeed, 27.540) _ 586864,

21,501 (35.32%) 443 924 1.899 (11,3518 52,003 1.243 2250 (78.249) I07.930

= —_ — — 8005 129 1,500 - 10,796

21,501 (35,325} 443624 18t0 (11,351} 60008 264 AT {78 248) 408.732

- 10 0583 — — - fnd - 9.593

21,501 {35.1%) 453,507 1810 111,351) 50,038 2,634 TS0 {78 248) 418.225

ﬂ 17 128 1.038.813 2277 35.061 110829 3815 20714 M 66950
v — ————



Reverus
At pabint servos revenue
Cthes revenus

Total reverne

Expenses
Salanas and wiges

Dapracadon snd amorbzebon
Interen

Tatsl axpacrian
Incoms (los) fiom oparsbons
Nonaparatng g {lo4844)
frvastmant ieame, nel
Othee et

Tol AeNOPATEsng g (loddes). nel

Revenue snd gewm n excass {dehcani) of sxpenses snd losses.

Dthar changes in net RSN withou! Gonar reSNChons
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Hetaasats calisted hom
noquisibens financed by nat asssty with donar
[ ™

for tend, buiding snd

ot ventures

Incrense [decrease)in ret sesets withoul donos resincions

S48 0eCOMPEAYNG WRTRPENR N MKk report

{ 1) ranaity pirthers

Schedyle T

Schadule » o und Changes m Nei Assets without Qanar Rastncugn informaton
Year endad Sapiember 30, 2023
{Amounts v thousandsh
Biver Crans
Blivar Hospital Midwast
Cross ang Bilvar Community Sivet Esaential
Health Madbeal Cross Resl Estaln Prims Hualth
Syviam Canters Foundaton Corporation Madiaal Partnary ERminations  Consolldated
- 14.872 501804 - - 3167 - (a54) 523083
10.234 567 0.5M - 2.579 2528 - 40,282 111,693} S50
10224 19.539 51213 - 2.579 23538 367 40.282 (1247 s7s.110
oM 8127 17860 - - LE2) e - - 02387
1598 2087 1177 180 m - - A6 453
2097 4138 130085 - 1511 813 1789 40202 112471) 184025
- 1333 108,445 - - - 144 - - 110922
- L] 22583 - 1227 1048 255 - - at Bo8
= = 15791 - - = 48 - = 15.840
2179 25.204 503,700 - 2738 2673 181 40203 {12 474y 575148
445 18.745) 8438 _ 1158] [ -3 —_ 124 29684
102 (08 17.004 - - - - o - 18730
- = I 802 — [12p - = = 920
1812 {108) 17334 802 = 2y - = = 19,830
2257 (5.851) @*%.772 02 159 (157} L] - ko) 22594
= = 880 - = = - = =
- = = = = 30,600 = {1.309) {18.215) [524)
2287 15.851) 28 852 02 159) 19,843 a 11.309) £19.091) 22650
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Schedula 3

Sikvar Cross.
Siver Haalth Hospital Midwasl
Cross Sarvice and Sitver Community Siver Essantial
Healih Systems, Madiesl Cross Res| Estale Cross Prime Health
Systam Inc. Conters Foundation Corporation M80 Madical Parlners Eliminstions _Consolidated
Net a388ts wilhoul donor restneyons
Revanug and gains i kxoass {0ahciant) of expenses nd lodted 13 2,257 {5.851) 25772 802 {158) 1151 & - 124 22 504
Dther changes in net assett withoul donor sesincons
Net assels refansed fram restncton fos land, busldung,
and equpmen scquistions hinancad by net sszaty
wath donor resuichons -— _ B8O - -— — Tk oot il .1
v copital llom { 10) munaeity partnes in
conzokdsied joml venturas - — - - - 26000 11,308 L1915 524)
Incrasaa (decramna) 1 nel matate withou
donoT 1eSRLONS 2357 {5.858) 28.852 602 {158 19843 -] 11,380 {18.001) 22 540
Nt a3aa1s with donor restnclions
Ceontributions for speatic purpeses —_ - 1.471 —- —_ - - - - 14M1
el roabzed snd LUniashzed gling and IoBSES ©N NEL ALkt
with donos restnchons - - 488 - - - - - - 486
Net assatu relessed from iaatncron 100 0pErBYAG DUIPCIES - - i139) - —- - - [RkL)
Net ssets raloasid from isstnchon foc land. budding.
And squipment dequmbone = = 1880) = = - - - — (830)
Change i nat sisets with donge e - 939 = - - — — — 939
Change i net ssiats 2257 15.851) 27 591 802 {158 10,843 ] {1.308) (1w.oR1) 23080
Nel ass#is (deficat) o1 beginming of yoar 19.244 {29.454) 415918 1,208 111,192) 40, 195 2878 5,058 {58,138) 394,438
Net assens [deficit) 01 end of yest $ 21.501 (35.215 453507 1810 1,351} 80.038 2834 3750 178 240) N85

See accompanying indepandent pudtors’ rapod




SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTERS

Combining Schedule - Special-Purpose Combined Balance Sheet Information — Obligaled Group
Seplember 30, 2023
{Amounts in thousands)

Schedule 4

Sliver Cross
Silver Cross Hospital and Obligated
Health Madical Group
Assols System Conters Ellminati Combined
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalants $ 2,246 17,389 - 19635
Short-term investments — 2,278 — 2.278
Assels whose use is kmited or resincted, required lor currenl liabilties — 11 - "
Patient accounts receivable — £9,929 — 58,920
Due from affiliates 60,894 158,308 {7101} 212201
Qther recavables 296 1,567 — 1863
inventory — 9,587 — 9587
Prepaid expenses and olher 257 6.618 — 6,876
Total currant assels 63,793 255 688 (7,101} 312,380
Assels whose use is fmiled or resincled, excluding assels required for current liabilities.
By board lor capital imprevements and other -_ 276,824 — 276924
By board for self-inswance 31,684 - 31,684
Under bond indenture agreements — held by trustee — 71 — "
Pledges recaivable — 74 374
Denor-restricled invasimenls - 1,830 — 1,830
Baneficial interest in parpetual lrusts 7,395 — 7,395
Total assets whose use s limited or resiricted 31 684 286,494 — 318,178
Land, buildings, and equipment, nat — 378,262 —_ 378,262
Other assels
Land held for sale — 23.035 — 23,035
Invastmeant in uncensahidaled subsidiary 22,650 e (22,650} -
Eslimated excess insurance recovary receivables 6,396 — — 6,396
Operaling leass right of use assels — 21,148 21,148
Other long-term assets - 74,206 — 74,206
Tolal assets $ 124,523 1,038,833 (29,751) 1,133,605
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTERS

Combining Schedute - Special-Purpose Combined Balanca Sheat Information — Obligated Group

Seplember 30, 2023
{Amounts in thousands)

LiabHities and Net Assats

Current labililes:
Cutrent installments of iong-lerm dabt
Current portion of operaling lease hiability
Accounls payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued expenses
Estimated payables under third-party reimbursement
Cue to affikales

Total current liabilities

Eslimated selfinsured professional and general liability claims
Long-term debt, excluding current installments and unamontized bond discounts and premiums
Long-lerm operating lease liabilily, net of current portion

Tolal lizbilities

Nat assels {deficit):
Nal assets {deficit) withoul donor restrictions
Nel assels with donor restriclions

Total net assets (daficit)

Total ligbilities and nel assels

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Silver Cross
Silver Cross Hospltal and Qbligated
Health Madical Group
System Canters Ellminations Combined
— 8,405 — 8,405
— 4,366 - 4366
119 50,833 - 50,952
2,993 22.708 -_— 257101
480 3,803 — 4283
— 31,758 — 31758
90,248 106,164 {7,101} 189.211
93,840 228,037 {7.101) N4776
44 497 - 44 497
-_— 339.041 — 338,041
— 18,248 18,248
138,337 585,326 {7101} 716,562
{13.824) 443,924 {22.650) 407 450
10 9.583 — 9,593
{13.814) 453,507 {22 650} 417.043
124,523 1.038.833 (29,751) 1,133 605




Schedule 6
SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM AND
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTERS

Combining Schedule — Special-Furpose Combined Statemant of Operations and Changes in Nel Assels without Donor Restriclions Inf tion = Obligated Group
Year ended September 30, 2023

{Amounts in lhousands)

Silver Cross

Sliver Cross Hospital and Qbligated
Health Madical Group
System Ceantsrs Eliminations Combined
Revenue:
Net palient service revenue $ — 501,604 - 501,804
Other ravenue 10,224 10,534 {0.952} 10,808
Total revenue 10,224 512,138 (9.952) 512,410
Expenses:
Salanes and wages 6,084 178,636 -_ 184722
Payioll laxes and fringe benefits 1,598 41177 — 42,775
General and adminisiralive 2,097 130.065 (9,952) 122,210
Supplies == 109,445 - 109,445
Depraciation and amortizalion — 28,583 - 28,582
Interest — 15,792 —_ 15,792
Tolal expenses 9,778 503,700 {9.952) 503,527
Income {loss} from aperations 445 8.438 - 8.883
Nonaperating gains (losses)
Invasimant income. net 1,812 16,902 - 18,714
Loss on investment in unconsokdatad subsidiary {5.851) — - {5.851)
Other, nel — 432 - 432
Total nonoperating gains {losses). net {4.039) 17,334 - 13,295
Revenue and gains in axcess (deficient) of expenses and l0sses (3,594) 25,772 - 22178
Other changas in net assets withoul donor restriclions
Naet assels released from restnclion for 1and, building, and equipment acquisitions financed by
net assels with donor restrictions — 880 — 880
Increase (decreasa) in nel assets withoul donor restricions $ {3.594/ 26,652 —_ 23,058

See accompanying independent auditors' report

43



Exhibit 4



6/27/23, 9:06 AM Fitch Afirms Silver Cross (IL) Revenua Bonds at'A-'; Outlook Stabla

FitchRatings

RATING ACTION COMMENTARY

Fitch Affirms Silver Cross (IL) Revenue Bonds at 'A-'; Qutlook Stable
Mon 26 Jun, 2023 - 12:29 PM ET

Fitch Ratings - Austin - 26 Jun 2023: Fitch Ratings has affirmed the "A~" Issuer Default Rating of Silver Cross Heath System (1L} and the "A-
' revenue bond rating on the series 2008A and 2015C bonds issued by the lllinofs Finance Authority on behalf of Silver Cross.

The Rating Outlock is Stable.

RATING ACTIONS
ENTITY / DEBT & RATING 3 PRIOR 3
Silver Cross Health System {IL) LTIDR  A-Rating Outlook Stable  Affrmed A- Rating Outlook
Stable
fg::;gt;ﬁ:t;fﬁem & LT  A- Rating Outlook Stable  Affirmed :l.a::ing Outioak

VIEW ADDITIONAL RATING DETAILS

The affirmation of the 'A-' reflects Silver Cross's historically strong cash flow generation, with operating EBITDA margins averaging over
15% for the past three years, combined with more moderate capital needs that have contributed to improved liquidity, The rating also
reflects Silver Cross's leading and growing market position in a stable service area,

Fitch expects fiscal 2023 operating performance to be on par with fiscal 2022, with an operating EBITDA margin of around 8%, related to
the economic headwinds that face the industry, Fitch's five-year forward-looking scenario analysis shows operating margins rebounding
following the softer 2022 driven by strong demand, and supported by Silver Cross's strategic outpatient growth, improved access, and
the strength of their core service lines.

Sllver Cross's financial profile is consistent with the lower end of the ‘A’ rating category when applying revenue stress and a portfalio
sensitivity analysis.

SECURITY

The bonds are secured by a gross revenue pledge and a mortgage on certain property, including the hospital campus.

KEY RATING DRIVERS
Revenue Defensibility - 'bbl'

Leading Market Share in Stable Service Area
Silver Cross, located about 35 miles southwest of Chicago, maintains a leading market position and a growing market share of just under

44% (primary service area} in a service area with solid population growth and favorable median income levels. Silver Cross has a good
payer mix with Medicaid and self-pay accounting for under 13% of gross revenues in fscal 2022,

htlps S fitchr ating s.comvresearchius- public-financadfitch- affirms-silver-cros s-il-revenue- bonds - at-a-outlook-stable- 26-06-2023
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Competition stems primarily from Ascension St. Josephs (located about nine miles to the west) with about 22% market share. In addition,
there are several academic medical centers located in the broader secondary service area. Silver Cross benefits from a large medical staff
that is both independent and employed and several affiliations with leading Chicago area health systems. The hospita has successfully
ramped up Its open-heart and cardlac surgery program and looks to further expand this service with a new outpatient catherization lab.

AlLevel lll neo-natal Intensive care unlt opened In August 2022 and is expected to help Silver Cross's already leading share for obstetrics
services. Management continues to focus on growth through Increasing access points and enhancing key service lines, The formation of a
multispedialty physician group that has grown to 40 practitioners should help to grow market share. Silver Cross continues to look for
ways to grow the market share, which included adding two hyperbaric chambers, a co-management agreement for orthopedic services
that has yielded over 100 new cases and continued growth in procedural care volume (surgeries),

Operating Risk - ‘aa’
Desplte Economic Headwinds Strong Operating Profitabllity Expected to Return

Silver Cross has demonstrated strong operating cost flexibility with operating EBITDA margins averaging about 14% over the past five
years, even those affected by the pandemic. Strong margins reflect the efficencies of operating In a refatively new facility, completed in
February 2012 combined with Silver Cross's labor and productivity practices. While Sllver Cross has faced the economic headwinds as
others In the industry, it has been able to sustain high single digit operating EBITDA margins in fiscal 2022 and the first half of fiscal 2023,
ended March 31.

For fiscal 2023, Silver Cross' inpatient volumes dedined in January and again in April. The April decline was driven by vacations and the
Easter hollday. Desplte the decline in Inpatlent volumes, which affected operational metrics, Silver Cross Improved its vacancy rate to 5%
in May 2023 from just over 7% In October 2022 for the system and improved its use of agency staffing. Currently Silver Cross is close to
what It budgets monthly for agency staff, Fitch expects that management will continue toimplement Inltiatives to sustain its operational
metrlcs.

Capex requirements are manageable and supported by cash flow with Silver Cross's average age of plant of approximately 11 years.
Capex averaged about 95% of depreciation over the past five years. Capital expenditures are expected to average about 80% of
depreciation over the next five years with strategic focus on access points, expanding inpatient capacity, and technology. The capital plan
is flexible with ability to scale back in stress years, as management is focused on building liquidity.

Financial Profile - 'a'
Moderating Leverage Supported by Strong Cash Flow

Sliver Cross' consistently strong cash flow generation and moderate capital needs given its relatively young facility has allowed for
improvement n the financial and leverage profile. Silver Cross reported unrestricted cash and Investments of $315 million for the first
half of fiscal 2023, translating to cash to adjusted debt of 81%, up from about 60% In fiscal 2019, Its weak debt metrics are the lingering
effect of a large $260 million repfacement hospital project completed In February 2012. Fitch did not make any adjustments to the $390
million total debt as Silver Cross does not have a defined benefit pension plan and inciudes operating lease expenses a liability on Its
balance sheet.

Fitch's base case scenarfo, which s a reasonable five-year forward ook, shows Silver Cross returning to strong operations with an
operating EBITDA margin of approximately 10% by 2025, foilowing softer performance in fiscal 2022 and the first half of fiscal 2023, and
Incorporates planned capltal investments that average about 80% of depreciation. The financial profile demonstrates adequate financial
flexibility In Fitch's stress case, which applies a revenue and portfolio sensitivity stress {based on asset allocation), with cash to adjusted
debt exceeding 75% by year three, This is cansistent with the 'A' rating category given Silver Cross's mid-range revenue defensibility and
strong operating risk assessment.

RATING SENSITIVITIES
Factors that Could, Individually or Collectively, Lead to Negative Rating Action/Downgrade

--A weakening of the financial profile where cash to adjusted debt remains below 75% in Fitch's stressed scenario;

htpaz/ww fitchrating s comiresearchius-public-financaffitch-affirms-silver-cross-il-revenue-bonds- at-a-outlook-stabl e- 26-06-2023
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--Compression in operating margins, particularly if the operating EBITDA margin falls below 8% for a sustained period.

Factors that Could, Individually or Collectlvely, Lead to Positive Rating Action/Upgrade

--Paositive rating actlon over the medium or longer term would require continued strong operating performance with operating EBITDA
margins consistently exceeding 12% and a financial profile with cash to adjusted debt improved to over 100% in Fitch's stress scenario.

BEST/WORST CASE RATING SCENARIO

International scale credit ratings of Sovereigns, Public Finance and infrastructure issuers have a best-case rating upgrade scenario
(defined as the 99th percentile of rating transitions, measured in a positive direction) of three notches over a three-year rating horizon;
and a worst-case rating downgrade scenario (defined as the 99th percentile of rating transitions, measured in a negative direction) of
three notches over three years. The complete span of best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings for all rating categories ranges from
'AAA! to D", Best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings are based on historical performance. For more information about the
methodology used to determine sector-specific best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings, visit
https://www.fitchratings.com/site/re/10111579,

PROFILE

Silver Cross operates 2 348-bed acute care hospital located approximately 35 miles southwest of downtown Chicago. The health system
successfully transitioned Into its replacement hospital in New Lenox, IL in February 2012 from its original hospital in Joliet, IL. The new
hospital has allowed Silver Cross to capitalize on a growing market, improve efficiencies, and enhance service offerings through its
various clinicaf partnerships. Total consolidated operating revenue egualed $522 million in hscal 2022,

In addition to the sources of information identified in Fitch's applicable eriteria specified below, this action was informed by information
from Lumesis.

REFERENCES FOR SUBSTANTIALLY MATERIAL SOURCE CITED AS KEY DRIVER OF RATING

The principal sources of information used in the analysis are described in the Applicable Criteria,

ESG CONSIDERATIONS

Unless otherwise disclosed in this section, the highest level of ESG credit relevance is a score of '3 This means ESG issues are credit-
neutral er have only a minimal credit impact on the entity, either due to their nature or the way in which they are being managed by the
entity. For more information on Fitch's ESG Relevance Scores, visit www fitchratings com/esg
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Additional information is available on www.fitchratings.com

PARTICIPATION STATUS

Therated entity (and/or its agents) or, in the case of structured finance, one or more of the transaction parties participated in the rating
process except that the following issuer(s), if any, did not participate in the rating process, or provide additional information, beyond the
issuer’s available public disclosure,

APPLICABLE CRITERIA

U.5. Not-For-Profit Hospitals and Health Systems Rating Criteria (pub. 18 Nov 2020} {including rating assumption sensitivity)
Public Sector, Revenue-Supported Entities Rating Criteria (pub. 27 Apr 2023) (including rating assumption sensitivity)

APPLICABLE MODELS

Numbers in parentheses accompanying applicable model{s) contain hyperlinks to criteria providing description of modelis).
Portfelio Analysis Model (PAM), v2.0.0(1)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Dodd-Frank Rating Information Disclosure Form
Solicitation Status

Endorsement Policy

ENDORSEMENT STATUS

ilinois Finance Authority {IL) EU Endorsed, UK Endorsed

DISCLAIMER & DISCLOSURES

Ali Fitch Ratings (Fitch) credit ratings are subject to certain limitations and disclaimers. Please read these limitations and disclaimers by
follawing this link: https://www.fitchratings.com/understandingcreditratings. In addition, the followi;'lg

https://www fitchratings.com/rating-definitions-document details Fitch's rating definitions for each rating scale and rating categories,
including definitions relating to default. ESMA and the FCA are required to publish historical default rates in a central repasitoryin
accordance with Articles 11(2) of Regulation {(EC) No 1060/200% of the Eurapean Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2009
and The Credit Rating Agencies (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 respectively.

Published ratings, criteria, and methodologies are available from this site at all times. Fitch's code of conduct, confidentiality, conflicts of
interest, affiliate firewall, compliance, and other relevant policies and procedures are also available from the Code of Conduct section of
this site. Directors and shareholders’ relevant interests are available at https:/iwww.fitchratings.com/site/regulatory. Fitch may have
provided another permissible or ancillary service to the rated entity orits related third parties. Details of permissible or ancillary
service{s} for which the lead analyst is based in an ESMA- or FCA-registered Fitch Ratings company (or branch of such a company) can be
found on the entity summary page for this issuer on the Fitch Ratings website.

InIssuing and maintaining its ratings and in making other reports {including forecast information). Fitch relies on factual information it
receives from issuers and underwriters and from other sources Fitch believes to be credible. Fitch conducts a reasonabie investigation of
the factualinformation relied upon by it in accordance with its ratings methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that
information from independent sources, to the extent such sources are available for a given security or in a given jurisdiction. The manner
of Fitch's factual investigation and the scope of the third-party verification it obtains will vary depending on the nature of the rated
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security and its issuer, the requirements and practices in the jurisdiction in which the rated security is offered and sold and/or the issuer is
located, the availability and nature of refevant public information, access to the management of theissuer and its advisers, the availability
of pre-existing third-party verifications such as audit reports, agreed-upon procedures letters, appraisals, actuarial reports, engineering
reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third parties, the availability of independent and competent third- party verification
sources with respect to the particular security or in the particular jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety of other factors. Users of Fitch's
ratings and reports should understand that neither an enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party verification can ensure that all
of the information Fitch relies on in connection with a rating or a report will be accurate and complete, Ultimately, the issuer and its
advisers are responsible for the accuracy of the information they provide to Fitch and to the market in offering documents and other
reports. In issuing its ratings and its reports, Fitch must rely on the work of experts, including independent auditors with respect to
financial statements and attorneys with respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings and forecasts of financial and other information
are inherently forward-looking and embody assumptions and predictions about future events that by their nature cannot be verified as
facts. As a result, despite any verification of current facts, ratings and forecasts can be affected by future events or conditions that were
not anticipated at the time a rating or forecast was issued or affirmed.

Theinformation in this report is provided “as is” without any representation or warranty of any kind, and Fitch does not represent or
warrant that the report or any of its contents will meet any of the requirements of a recipient of the report. A Fitch rating Is an opinion as
to the creditworthiness of a security. This opinion and reports made by Fitch are based on established criteria and methodologies that
Fitch is continuously evaluating and updating. Therefore, ratings and reports are the collective work product of Fitch and no individual, or
group of individuals, is solely responsible for a rating or a report. The rating does not address the risk of loss due to risks other than credit
risk, unless such riskis specifically mentioned. Fitch is not engaged in the offer or sale of any security. All Fitch reports have shared
authorship. Individuals identified in a Fitch report were involved in, but are not solely responsible for, the opinions stated therein. The
individuals are named for contact purposes only. A report providing a Fitch rating is neither a prospectus nor a substitute for the
information assembled, verified and presented to investors by the issuer and its agents in connection with the sale of the securities.
Ratings may be changed or withdrawn at any time for any reason in the sole discretion of Fitch. Fitch does not provide investment advice
of any sort. Ratings are not a recommendation to buy. sell, or hold any security. Ratings do not comment on the adequacy of market price,
the suitability of any security for a particular investor, or the tax-exempt nature or taxability of payments made in respect to any security.
Fitch receives fees from issuers, insurers, guarantors, other obligors, and underwriters for rating securities. Such fees generally vary from
US5$1,000 to US$750,000 (or the applicable currency equivalent) per issue. in certain cases, Fitch will rate all or a number of issues issued
by a particular issuer, or insured or guaranteed by a particular insurer or guarantor, for a single annual fee, Such fees are expected to vary
from U5$10,000 to U5%$1,500,000 {or the applicable currency equivalent). The assignment, publication, or dissemination of a rating by
Fitch shall not constitute a consent by Fitch to use its name as an expert in connection with any registration statement filed under the
United States securities laws, the Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 of the United Kingdom, or the securities laws of any
particular jurisdiction. Due to the relative efficiency of electrenic publishing and distribution, Fitch research may be available to electronic
subscribers up to three days earlier than to print subscribers.

For Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan and South Korea only: Fitch Australia Pty Ltd holds an Australian financial services license (AFS
license no. 337123} which authorizes it to provide credit ratings to wholesale clients only. Credit ratings information published by Fitch is
not intended to be used by persons who are retail clients within the meaning of the Corporations Act 2001.Fitch Ratings, Inc. is
registered with the U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission as a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Crganization {the “NRSRO").
While certain of the NRSRO's credit rating subsidiaries are listed on Item 3 of Form NRSRO and as such are authorized to issue credit
ratings on behalf of the NRSRO (see https://www itchratings.com/site/regulatory), other credit rating subsidiaries are not listed on Form
NRSRO (the “non-NRSROs") and therefore credit ratings issued by those subsidiaries are not issued on behalf of the NRSRO. However,
non-NRSRO personne| may participate in determining credit ratings issued by or on behalf of the NRSRO.

dv01, a Fitch Solutions company, and an affifiate of Fitch Ratings, may from time to time serve as loan data agent on certain structured
finance transactions rated by Fitch Ratings.

Copyright © 2023 by Fitch Ratings, Inc,, Fitch Ratings Ltd. and its subsidiaries. 33 Whitehall Street, NY, NY 10004, Telephone: 1-800-753-
4824, {212) 908-0500. Fax: (212} 480-4435. Reproduction or retransmission in whole or in part is prohibited except by permission. All
rights reserved,
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The ratings above were solicited and assigned or maintained by Fitch at the request of the rated entity/issuer or a related third party. Any
exceptions follow below.
ENDORSEMENT POLICY

Fitch's international credit ratings produced outside the EU or the UK, as the case may be, are endorsed for use by regulated entities
within the EU or the UK, respectively, for regulatory purposes, pursuant to the terms of the EU CRA Regulation or the UK Credit Rating
Agencies {Amendment etc.} (EU Exit) Regulations 2019, as the case may be. Fitch's approach to endorsement in the EU and the UK can be
found on Fitch's Regulatory Affairs page on Fitch's website, The endorsement status of international credit ratings is provided within the
entity summary page for each rated entity and in the transaction detail pages for structured finance transactions on the Fitch website.
These disclosures are updated on a daily basis.
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February 26, 2024

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

Ilinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Ilinois 62761

Re:  Criterion 1120.130(a) Financial Viability Waiver Certification
Alteration Request, Project No. 22-022

Silver Cross Orland Park Medical Office Building
Dear Mr. Constantino:

I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury as provided in § 1-109 of the lllinois Code of
Civil Procedure, 735 ILCS 5/1-109, and pursuant to 77 lil. Admin. Code § 1120.130(a), that the
Permit Holders will fund the additional modernization contracts/tenant improvement allowances
set forth in the Alteration Request filed by the Permit Holders for the Silver Cross Orland Park
Medical Office Building (Project No. 22-022) with cash and cash equivalents.

Sincerely,

M%/

Vincent E. Pryor
Executive Vice President & CFO
Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN
to before me this 14~ day
of February, 2024.

TAMMY L FORTUNSK!
Official Seal
Notary Public - State of Illinols
My Commission Expires Nov 17, 2024

4890-8268-4585.1
The way you shouldd be treated.



